
 
A meeting of the CABINET will be held in CIVIC SUITE A, GROUND 
FLOOR, PATHFINDER HOUSE, ST MARY'S STREET, HUNTINGDON 
on TUESDAY, 16 MARCH 2010 at 6:00 PM and you are requested to 
attend for the transaction of the following business:- 
 
 

APOLOGIES 
 
 � 

Contact 
(01480) 

1. MINUTES  (Pages 1 - 6) 
 

 

 To approve as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting of 
the Cabinet held on 11th February 2010. 
 

Mrs H Taylor 
388008 

2. MEMBERS INTERESTS   
 

 

 To receive from Members declarations as to personal and/or 
prejudicial interests and the nature of those interests in relation 
to any Agenda item.  Please see notes 1 and 2 below. 
 

 

3. CAR PARK REVIEW 2009  (Pages 7 - 10) 
 

 

 To receive a report by the Head of Democratic and Central 
Services on the outcome of the call-in of the decision of the 
Cabinet relating to the Car Parking Review 2009. 
 

Mrs J Walker 
387049 

 Dated this 8 day of March 2010  
 

 

 

 Chief Executive  
 
 
Notes 
 
1.  A personal interest exists where a decision on a matter would affect to a 

greater extent than other people in the District – 
 

(a) the well-being, financial position, employment or business of the 
Councillor, their family or any person with whom they had a close 
association; 

 
 (b) a body employing those persons, any firm in which they are a 

partner and any company of which they are directors; 
 
 (c) any corporate body in which those persons have a beneficial 

interest in a class of securities exceeding the nominal value of 
£25,000; or 



 
 (d) the Councillor’s registerable financial and other interests. 
 
2. A personal interest becomes a prejudicial interest where a member of 

the public (who has knowledge of the circumstances) would reasonably 
regard the Member’s personal interest as being so significant that it is 
likely to prejudice the Councillor’s judgement of the public interest. 

 
 
Please contact Mrs H Taylor, Senior Democratic Services Officer, Tel No. 
01480 388008/e-mail Helen.Taylor@huntsdc.gov.uk /e-mail:   if you have 
a general query on any Agenda Item, wish to tender your apologies for 
absence from the meeting, or would like information on any decision 
taken by the Cabinet. 
Specific enquiries with regard to items on the Agenda should be directed 
towards the Contact Officer.  
Members of the public are welcome to attend this meeting as observers 
except during consideration of confidential or exempt items of business. 
 
 

Agenda and enclosures can be viewed on the District Council’s website – 
www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk (under Councils and Democracy). 

 
 

If you would like a translation of 
Agenda/Minutes/Reports or would like a  

large text version or an audio version  
please contact the Democratic Services Manager 

and we will try to accommodate your needs. 
 
 

Emergency Procedure 
In the event of the fire alarm being sounded and on the instruction of the 
Meeting Administrator, all attendees are requested to vacate the building via 
the closest emergency exit. 

 



HUNTINGDONSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
 
 MINUTES of the meeting of the CABINET held in the the Aquarius 

Room, St Ivo Leisure Centre, Westwood Road, St Ives on Thursday, 
11 February 2010. 

   
 PRESENT: Councillor I C Bates – Chairman. 
   
  Councillors K J Churchill, D B Dew, J A Gray, 

A Hansard, C R Hyams, Mrs D C Reynolds, 
T V Rogers and L M Simpson. 

   
   
 
 
88. MINUTES   
 
 The Minutes of the meeting of the Cabinet held on 21st January 2010 

were approved as a correct record and signed by the Chairman. 
 

89. MEMBERS' INTERESTS   
 
 No declarations were received. 

 
90. FINANCIAL STRATEGY, MEDIUM TERM PLAN 2011 TO 2015 AND 

THE 2010/11 BUDGET   
 
 Further to Minute No. 09/58 and by way of a report by the Head of 

Financial Services (a copy of which is appended in the Minute Book) 
the Cabinet were acquainted with a number of variations to the 
assumptions made previously for the purpose of preparing the draft 
Financial Strategy, Medium Term Plan (MTP), the budget and 
associated level of Council Tax for 2010/2011, together with the 
deliberations of the Overview and Scrutiny (Economic Well-Being) 
Panel thereon. 
 
Having noted comments arising from the consultation with the 
business community on expenditure proposals and in acknowledging 
the contribution of the Overview and Scrutiny Panel for their 
considerations, the Cabinet 
 
RECOMMENDED 
 
 (a) that the proposed budget, Medium Term Plan and 

Financial Strategy appended to the report now 
submitted be approved;  

 
 (b) that an increase of £3.02 (2.5%) in Council Tax, 

representing a level of £124.17 for a Band D property 
for 2010/2011 be approved; and 

 
 (c) that the Director of Commerce and Technology, after 

consultation with the Leader, Executive Councillor for 
Finance, and relevant Chief Officers be authorised to 
manage the special reserve referred to in paragraph 

Agenda Item 1

1



5.3 of the report. 
  
 

91. TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 2010/11   
 
 With the aid of a report by the Head of Financial Services (a copy of 

which is appended in the Minute Book) the Cabinet considered the 
contents of a proposed Treasury Management Strategy for 
2010/2011.  The views of the Overview and Scrutiny Panel (Economic 
Well-Being) were received (copies of which also are appended in the 
Minute Book). 
 
Having noted changes to the Chartered Institute of Public Finance 
and Accountancy's Treasury Management Code of Practice, and in 
particular a requirement for Council’s to nominate where the 
responsibility for scrutinising Treasury Management would be 
undertaken, the Cabinet 
 
RESOLVED 
 that the Council be recommended to approve:- 

• the Treasury Management Strategy for 2010/11 as 
appended to the report now submitted;  

• the Treasury Management Indicators and 
Prudential Indicators for 2010/11; and 

• the scrutiny of Treasury Management be 
undertaken by the Overview and Scrutiny 
(Economic Well-Being) Panel. 

  
 

92. CAR PARKING REVIEW 2009   
 
 Further to Minute No. 09/59 and by way of a report by the Head of 

Planning Services (a copy of which is appended in the Minute Book) 
the Cabinet were acquainted with the findings of the Members Car 
Parking Working Group in relation to the operational aspect of 
introducing an element of two hours free parking for recreational 
users of Riverside Park, St. Neots. 
 
In so doing, Executive Councillors were reminded that proposals to 
introduce charging at Cambridge Street and Riverside Car Park in St. 
Neots were being developed as part of a revised Off-Street Parking 
Places Order 2010 targeted for implementation from 1st June 2010.   
 
Having recognised the importance of the Riverside as a recreational 
area and the difficulties of enforcement if all spaces were made free 
for the first two hours, the Working Group had recommended that an 
element of free parking be provided.  This demarcated area would 
consist of 38 spaces providing free parking for up to 2 hours. In that 
content the Cabinet was acquainted with the views of the Overview 
and Scrutiny (Environmental Well-Being) Panel which had identified a 
variety of local circumstances which suggested a more extensive free 
parking policy.  As provision had been made in the budget for 
additional income from charges with effect from 1st June, the Cabinet 
recognised that progress was required urgently if a shortfall in the 
budget was to be avoided.  The Cabinet therefore concluded that the 
order should be made and advertised and the views of the Overview 
and Scrutiny Panel considered together with any comments from the 

2



public at the end of the statutory consultation procedure before an 
order is confirmed. Whereupon, it was 
 
RESOLVED 

(a) that the provision of 38 spaces offering 2 hours free 
parking in a demarcated area at Riverside Car Park, 
St. Neots be included as part of an Off-Street Parking 
Places Order 2010 for planned implementation on 1st 
June 2010; 

(b) that the Car Parking Working Group be requested to 
consider those issues raised by the Overview and 
Scrutiny (Environmental Well-Being) Panel and the 
promotion of environmental issues at the end of the 
statutory consultation period; and 

(c) that the Director of Environment and Community 
Services be authorised, after consultation with the 
Executive Councillor for Planning Strategy and 
Transport, to make and confirm Off-Street Parking 
Places Orders in future years involving any changes of 
minor significance and reviews of charges in line with 
inflation. 

  
 

93. LOCAL DEVELOPMENT SCHEME REVISION   
 
 By way of a report by the Head of Planning Services (a copy of which 

is appended in the Minute Book) the Cabinet were invited to consider 
the content of a revised Local Development Scheme for 
Huntingdonshire.  
 
The Cabinet noted that changes to the scheme had arisen as a result 
of new regulations on development plan document production and 
from the need to amend the anticipated timetables for the production 
of various Development Plan Documents since the adoption of the 
Core Strategy.  Whereupon, it was  
 
RESOLVED 
 
 (a) that the revised Local Development Scheme, 

appended to the report now submitted, be endorsed for 
submission to the Secretary of State; and 

 
 (b) that prior to its submission to the Secretary of State, 

the Head of Planning Services be authorised, after 
consultation with the Executive Councillor for Planning 
Strategy and Transport, to make any minor changes to 
the draft Local Development Scheme, as he considers 
necessary following informal consultation with Go-
East. 

  
 

94. DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT SUBMISSION DOCUMENT   
 
 Further to Minute No. 08/100, and by way of a report by the Head of 

Planning Services (a copy of which is appended in the Minute Book), 
the Cabinet were acquainted with the content of the proposed 
submission document for Development Management along with the 

3



responses received on the proposals set out in a Statement of 
Consultation. 
 
Members were reminded that the DPD formed part of the Local 
Development Framework, would support the Core Strategy and East 
of England Plan and would set out the Council's policies for managing 
development in Huntingdonshire including the assessment and 
determination of planning applications.   
 
Having received the views of the Overview and Scrutiny 
(Environmental Well-Being) Panel on the matter, the Cabinet  
 
RECOMMENDED 
 

(a) that the draft proposed submission document for 
Development Management be approved; 

 
(b) that the Head of Planning Services be authorised, after 

consultation with the Executive Councillor for Planning 
Strategy and Transport, to make any minor textual 
amendments to the documents and to approve the 
Statement of Consultation, Sustainability Appraisal, 
Habitat Regulations Assessment and Equality Impact 
Assessment prior to publication; and 

 
(c) that the Head of Planning Services be authorised, after 

consultation with the Executive Councillor for Planning 
Strategy and Transport, to complete the final 
submission for Development Management DPD and 
associated documents including a summary of the 
main issues raised in final representations and to 
submit these documents to the Secretary of State. 

  
 

95. NATIONAL NON DOMESTIC RATES - DISCRETIONARY RATE 
RELIEF UNDER THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT FINANCE ACT 1988 
(AS AMENDED)   

 
 The Cabinet received a report by the Head of Customer Services (a 

copy of which is appended in the Minute Book) reviewing the 
Council's policy for assessing entitlement to discretional rate relief 
which was last reviewed in October 2005. 
 
Having considered the information contained in the report, current 
awards and associated costs for 2009/10, the Cabinet  
 
RESOLVED 
 (a) that the proposed discretionary rate relief policy as set 

out in Appendix A to the report now submitted be 
approved for applications relating to 2010/2011 
onwards;  

 
 (b) that the rateable value as mentioned in the policy be 

reviewed every five years on the occasion of the new 
ratings lists; 

 
 (c) that the Head of Revenue Services and the Local 

4



Taxation Manager be authorised to grant relief under 
the policy; 

 
 (d) that "Part Occupation" relief (S44a) be optimised in 

appropriate cases for a maximum of twelve months, 
subject to prevailing legislation on unoccupied rating; 

 
 (e) that “Rural Rate Relief (S47) continue to be granted in 

appropriate cases, subject to the Rural Settlement List 
with a provision of 100% relief for rural post offices;  

 
 (f) that the Head of Customer Services, after consultation 

with the Executive Member for Finance, be authorised 
to grant "Hardship Relief" (S49) on the merits of 
individual cases; and  

 
 (g) that the Director of Commerce and Technology be 

authorised to deal with appeals from applicants 
dissatisfied with the determination made by the Head 
of Revenue Services and the Local Taxation Manager. 

 
 

96. MINI RECYCLING SITES (BRING SITES)   
 
 Further to Minute No. 09/35, and with the assistance of a report by 

the Head of Operations (a copy of which is appended in the Minute 
Book) the Cabinet were acquainted with revised working 
arrangements for moving 1,000 litre wheeled bins at bring sites. 
 
Members were advised that collections have been re-scheduled so 
that employees attend all know heavily used locations together and 
instructions issued that if an employee finds that a bin is too heavy to 
move when working alone, he should not attempt to move it. Having 
been advised that these new arrangements address the concerns 
previously expressed by the Safety Advisory Group, the Cabinet  
 
RESOLVED 
 that the contents of the report now submitted be noted. 
  
 

97. ST NEOTS EASTERN EXPANSION   
 
 Consideration was given to a report by the Head of Planning Services 

(a copy of which is appended in the Minute Book) outlining 
governance arrangements required to support the master planning 
process from the St. Neots Eastern Expansion. 
 
Members were advised that a Delivery Board would be developed to 
manage the implementation of the plan involving representatives of 
Cambridgeshire Horizons and the District Council.  Having considered 
also Member involvement and governance arrangements for a Project 
Members’ Steering Group which would report directly to the Board, 
the Cabinet 
 
RESOLVED 
 
 that the proposed governance proposals for the 

5



development of the St. Neots Eastern Expansion be noted 
and the appointment of four Members to the Project Steering 
Group delegated to the Chief Executive, after consultation 
with the Deputy Leader of the Council. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Chairman 
 

6



CABINET        16th MARCH 2010 
 

CALL IN: CAR PARKING REVIEW UPDATE 
(Report by the Head of Democratic and Central Services) 

 
 

1. INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is formally to notify Executive Councillors of the 

outcome of the call in of the Cabinet’s decision on the Car Parking Review 2009. 
 
2. CALL-IN 
 
2.1 The Overview and Scrutiny Panel (Environmental Well-Being) called in the 

decision by the Cabinet on 11th February 2010 and considered the matter at a 
meeting on 2nd March 2010. 

 
2.2 In considering the matter, the Panel reiterated its concerns over the possible 

implications of implementing parking charges at Riverside Park, St Neots. 
Members expressed the opinion that the Cabinet’s decision to provide 38 spaces 
offering 2 hours free parking in a demarcated area at Riverside Car Park, St 
Neots would:- 

 
� lead to more cars and vehicles parking in areas adjacent to the car park 

and increased use of the town centre car parks; 
� create additional congestion in the High Street and town centre; 
� increase pollution in the High Street, an area identified by environmental 

health as above acceptable levels; 
� exacerbate the reduction in retail footfall currently being experienced in St 

Neots, and; 
� reduce visitors and tourism opportunities. 

 
2.3 Having regard to the dual use of the Riverside Park car park by users of both the 

park and the town centre, the Panel was conscious that the 38 spaces allocated 
for leisure usage could be dominated by shoppers, which would reduce the free 
spaces available for those wanting to use the park for leisure and recreational 
purposes. The Panel noted that there was no way in which use of the proposed 
free spaces could be restricted to park users. 

 
2.4 The Panel felt that, not only were 38 spaces insufficient for a free period for 

parking but that two hours was insufficient before charging began. Members 
were of the view that a period of two hours was not long enough for users of the 
Riverside Park, nor those who wished to walk into the town. Moreover it was 
pointed out by local Members that there were limited play opportunities in St 
Neots west of the river which, together with the distances involved in travelling to 
the Riverside Park and the inadequacies of public transport locally, meant that 
parents had little option other than to travel by car to permit their children to use 
the play facilities at the riverside. 

 
 
 

Agenda Item 3

7



3. CONCLUSION 
 
3.1 In light of their concerns, the Panel requests the Cabinet to reconsider allowing 3 

hours free parking in the whole of Riverside Car Park which would benefit 
shoppers who wish to park for short periods and assist those who want to use 
the park for leisure and recreational purposes. The Panel suggests that the 
charge be set in line with the car park at Cambridge Street for those who park 
longer than 3 hours. 

 
Contact Officer: Mrs J Walker, Trainee Democratic Services Officer 

    (01480) 387049 
Jessica.walker@huntsdc.gov.uk 

8



 
   
 
 
CABINET 16TH MARCH 2010 
 
 

CAR PARKING REVIEW 2009 
(Report by Head of Planning Services) 

 
1. INTRODUCTION  
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to provide some financial information 

based on the recommendation of the Overview & Scrutiny Panel 
(Environmental Well-Being) to Cabinet from their meeting held on 2nd 
March 2010. 

 
 
2. BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
2.1 As part of the original package of proposals submitted to Cabinet on 

19th November 2009 as part of this Review, the financial impacts of 
these were also contained within the MTP for 2010/11, now approved. 
The additional net income of the proposals was just under £100k 

 
2.2 Following further Cabinet consideration of the proposals for St. Neots, 

38 spaces were to be made available within Riverside car park, free 
of charge for a period not exceeding 2 hours. Officers were asked to 
assess the financial impact of this changed scenario in relation to the 
overall net income projected in 2.1 above. As a result of this 
suggested change, Officers estimate that overall income would drop 
by £10K to approx. £90K for this scenario. 

 
3. IMPLICATIONS  
 
3.1 At the meeting today, Cabinet are considering an alternative 

recommendation from the Overview & Scrutiny Panel (Environmental 
Well-Being), namely that instead of 38 spaces being provided free of 
charge for a period not exceeding 2 hours at Riverside car park, St. 
Neots, that all spaces would be free of charge for a period not 
exceeding 3 hours. Thereafter, the Panel recommend that a 4-hour 
charge of 80p be applied, in line with that proposed for Cambridge 
Street and a figure of £1.50/day for all-day parking. 

 
3.2 Officers have assessed the financial impact of this latest 

recommendation in order that the financial impacts can be considered 
when it is discussed. Based on their recommendation, it is estimated 
that the net income would drop by a further £37k to £53K – a total 
loss of £47K from the approved MTP. 

 

9



4. RECOMMENDATION 
 

It is recommended that; 
 

  Cabinet bear in mind the financial implications outlined above 
when they consider the implications of the Overview & Scrutiny 
Panel (Environmental Well-Being). 

 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
Car Parking Review 2009 – Cabinet Reports 19th November 2009 & 11th 
February 2010. 
 
 
Contact 
Officer: 

Stuart Bell – Transport Team Leader 

 � (01480) 388387 
 
 
 

10


	Agenda
	1 minutes
	3 car park review 2009
	Cabinet Report 100316


